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JUD GEM EN T 

Ex-15J83 

The last Genera! Assembly Ele:::tions Were held in Mizoram in April, 1979-
the date of polling was 27th of that month. The two main cantestants from 
the Aizawl North (Scheduled Tribe) Constituency wefe the petitioner and 
respondent No.1. The electorate preferred the latter who won by a margin 
of 149-2951 votes as against 2802 secured by the petitioner. The allegation 
is that respondent No. I had won the election by indulging in corrupt 
pratices. The two main allegations aTe that dummy ballot papers were 
issued with the consent of the returned candidate in which the election symbol of 
the petitioner was \\Tongly shown which misguided the voters and his partry. 
Congress (l) was described as a party of non�Mizos, This apart, in a meeting 
held on 21 .  4. 79 at Sihphir, which was addressed by respondent No. 1 himself, 
the audience was told that the Congress (I) was a non�Mizo Party, The only 
other allegation is that the returned candidate, who was subsequently selected as 
the Chief Minister of Mizoram, had taken assistance of the Government machine­
ry so much so that one John V. Hluna, a Lecturer of Government College has 
canvassed for him by addressing a public meeting on 24. 4. 79 at Durtlang. 

2. The aforesaid alleged acts attract the mischief of sub-sections (3). (3A). (4) and 
(7) of section 123 of the Representation of People Act, 1951 ( for short the Act) 
according to the election petitioner. All the allegations have been denied by res­
pondent No. 1. On the basis of the pleadings as many as II issues were framed 
in support of which the petitioner examined 6 witnesses and exhibited some docu­
ments, The respondent No. 1 produced himself and 8 other persons. An agree­
m�nt entereu into between the Government and North Eastern Hill University (NERU) 
was also exhibited by the respondent to show that the College in which Shri. John, 
V. Hluna is a Lecturer had ceased to be a Government College on and from 19.4. 
79 as it had acquired the St3tUS of a University College from that day. 
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3. On the basis of the evidence led by both the parties the allegations which, ac· 
cording to the learned Advocate General, Assam, who is appearing for the peti­
tioner, could be substantiated are: 

1) Distribution of dummy ballot papers at Ca) Chaltlang and (b) Sihphir: and 

2) The objectionable speech of Brig. T. Saiio, respondent No. r at 

X The learned counsel, therefore, addressed me on these aspects only, 
stated that the only material allegations in the election petition were: 

Sihphir. 

ft may be 

1) Distribution of dummy ballot pepers like Exhibit P (5) at Durtlang by .\1r5. 
Sailo; and 

2) Addressing of election meeting by John V. HIuna. Though relymg On the 
rubber stamp impression on the election symbol of Brig. T. Sailo in dummy 
ballot papers, it was urged that assistance of the election Office of the Government 
was also taken, this aspect was not pressed, and rightly, because a rubber �tamp 
like one whose impression found place on dummy ballot papers could have I)een 
made at any place. The distribution of dummy ballot papers at Durtlanf, was not 
pressed because of the witnesses examined by the petitioner none hac! deposed 
about the same as being true to his knowledge. As against tris, Mrs. 
Saito came forward to deny the allegation. She was reported by R. ·Ws 7 & 
8. The objection relating to the addre5sing of meeting by John V. Hluna was given up 
having found from Exhibit R(l) Cthe agreement above referred) that PachhllTIga 
Memorial College had ceased to be a Government College on and from 19-4-79 
In view of all these there would not have been any legal objection in Shri. Hluna 
addressing the meeting, though this also has been denied by Shn. Hluna, who 
appeared as R W- 6. 

4. We arc thus �·equired to answer if dummy hallot papers like Exhibit P(5) 
had been distributed at Chaltlang and Sihphir ; and whether at Sihphir Brig T. Sailo 
bad described Congress (I) Party as the party of non-Mizos. The distribution of 
dummy ballot papers at ChaItlang i:, said to have taken place on two occasions. 
First on 21-4-79 \vhen respondent No.5, Shri. Biakliana a worker of People's Con­
ference Party, the party of respondent No.1, had handed over document lIke 
Exhibit peS) to none else than netitioner himself. This apart. dummy balbt papers 
Were widely distributed in that villag'e on 23-4-79 among the voters by Lalmulna, 
Secretary of the People's Conference Party Unit; Lalhma Chhuana, Secretuy 0··' thc 
Youth Wing of that Unit and RW- 5, Biakliana. The distribution at Sihphir waj on 
21-4-79 aCCording to the petitioner in the meeting addressed by Bng. T. Sailo. 

S. Before proceeding with the analysis of the cvidence it may be 
seen as to how and when a corrupt practice call be said to be es:ablished. 
It has been held by catena of decisions by the highest court of the 
land that a charge of corrupt practice is substantially akin to that oj' a 
criminal charge because the commission of corrupt practice entails serioLs panal 
consequences. It not only vitiates th(� election of the candidate but also disqualifies 
him from taking part in elections for a considerably long time. A gr:lVe and 
heavy onus, therefore, rests on the aCcuser to establish each and every ingredient 
of the charge by clear unequivocal and unimpeachable evidence beyond reLsonablc 
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doubt more preponderance of probabilities being not enough, vide N.C. Zeliang, 
AIR '

1981 SC 8; Mohammad Koya, AIR 1979 SC 154; Rajagopala Rao, AIR 
1971 SC 267 and Razik Ram vs. l.S. Chouhan, !.IR 1975 SC 667. It, however, 
deserves to be pointed out that though the charge Jf commission of corrupt practice 
has to be proved like a criminal charge or quasi- �riminal charge, but not c,xactly 
in the mann�r of establishment of quilt in a criminal prosecution giving the liberty 
to the accused to keep m<.!lTI, and the charge has w be judged an appraisal of the 
the evidence adduced by both sides, specially by election petitioner as pointed 
out in Narayan Raa yr. Venkata Reddi, AIR 1977 SC 208. 

6. Another thread around which the election law has been v·/oven is  that it is 
unsafe in an ejection case to ac�ept orai evidenc� a.t bee value without looking 
for assurance from S')1111..': surer ClrCUlTIstances or In Impeachable documents. as held 
in Laksbmi Raman vs. Chandan Singh, AIR t977 SC 587 and Amolak Chan Vs, 
Bhagawandas, AIR 1977 SC 813. This is for the rea�on, as pointed out i n  forceful 
language by lyer, lin Rahim Khan vs. Khurshid Ahmed, AIR 1975 SC 290 that; 

" U) t must be remembered that corrupt pracL.iccs may perhaps be proved by 
hiring half a dozen v.;itnessl.;':s apparently resptctable and disinteJested, to speak 
to short simply episodes such as that", n small village mcetin[! took 
place where the candidates [tecused his rival of pelsonal vices. There is no 
X-Ray whereby the dishonesty of the stOly c,m be cstablished and i f  the 
Courts \\�rc gullible enough to gulp such oral \·ersions and invalidate elections, 
a new mcl1ancc to our electoral ... ystcm \YOU d havr.:: bcr.::n invented through the 
Judicial appara1l.1s. V:c regard it �IS extrcmel v unsaf�l in the prescnt climate 
of kilkenny cat eL:ctiPll competitions a11d partisall \\-itnesses wearing robes of 
.veracity, to upturn a hard won electoral victory merely because lip service to 
a corrupt practice has been rcndered by �Omc sanctimonious witnesses". 

7. Lastly, an election court has also to bear in mind that hard won elections are 
\lot to be likely set a"id�, of course in a democracy like ours, the purity and 
sanctity of election. the sacrosanct and sacred m lure of the electoral process must 
also b� pre')erved and m'lintain·.:d. So, a courl ha� to strike a balance in this regard 
i. e. it has 10 see that election result" are not likely brushed aside and at the same 
time It mUSl protect the purity "nd sobf1i�ty of th!; ejections as pointed out in Ven­
kata Reddy vs .R. Sullan, AIR 1976 SC 1599. 
8. To llle Cach and. eV'j(lencc nm\.". In so 1'",1" dS th�� di.':dribution at Chaltlang on 
21."t Anril."79 i') conccrl1'.�d, the petitioner bim<;elf has deposed about this, which 
has been sought to he controverted by examining Biaklj:1l1a. A reference 
to the e v idence 0[' lilt:: petition,'r sho\\5 that he v{as not specifically 
._Toss-examined ()Jl his evidence bOllt handing over a ducument like Exhibit P (5) 
by Biakliana. Learned Advocate General, Ass,.m, therefore, contends that the 
evidence of the petitioner himself establishes this act. This apart, by referring to 
the cyidenct:: of lliakliana it i-.; urged that he may nct be believed in what he has 
dcpos.::d. It is first !)t�ted th:lt �iakljana is not onlY a worker of People's Conference 
Party. He is also a P.W.D. Contractor to whon a big loan had recently been 
given by the small fndustrial Development Corporation whose Chairman is the 
Chief Sxretary. As such it is submitted that Biakliana is under the obligation of 
the Chief Minister in many ways. His evidence that he had seen document like 
Exhibit P (5) hr t:1C fir:�t time in the Court cannot inspire any confidence, contends 

t 
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the learn�j Au vocate General, Assam, \\'hen it is noted that even accar(:ing to 
him he had be(;n asked in the later part of Ju!y/79 by Brig. T.Sailo w.bether he 
had distributed "deh papers. This clearly shows that a document like E)�hjbit P 
(5) had been sho\\11 to the witness cLflier, rnav be after Brig. Sailo had 'ecci\ed 
a copy of the election petition along with which a copy of Exhibit P (5) had 
been enclosed. 

9. I have found sufficient force in this submission on behalf of the pe.itioncr. 
It has been nokd by me that all the witnesses for respondent No. I had at 
least one thing to say, and the same was that they had llm Seell 
dummy ballot pape·· like Exhibit P (5) earlier. Of course, Brig. T.Sailo 
and his \vifc have deposed thaJ they had seen this after 
a copy of the election petition was re:cived. I would think that in m.,king a 
statement of the above type other witnesses 0[' respondent No.1 had ccpaned 
from the truth in as mu�h as if they were questioned by the returned candidate or 
his party about thi� allegation, or wer,;: a:.ked to make inquiries about it, tile same 
could not have bt-en �ossible without the witnesses being shown the ,-lllegc(: docu­
ment. Apart from the aforesaid criticisims of Biakliana's evidence, his :..t:ltemf'nt 
that he had not given a dummy ballOl paper to the petitioner on 21-4-7S a-.; it 
being a Sunday he had gone to his quarry is not correct because 21st Apr:!, 1979 
wa.s not a Sunday-it W,lS rather a Saturday . 

10. Learnd A(l\ocate (i-cneral, Jlvlcgrala\u, llO\.,.'cver, submits that desp te t le 
above, it Can not be held beyond rcason-able doubt that Biakliana had hand\�d 
over the durnmj hallot paper to the petitioner. He first bring to my notite that 
no specifk issue \Vas struck about distribution of dummy ballot paper at Claltlallg 
on 21-4-· 79. As to why an issue on this was not framed 15 not quite clear as the 
pleadings do cont;:in neccessary materiLl.j for the same. It seems it ha:; mi�-sed :,11 
as indicated by both tile sides. Lean�ed counsel is, hmvever, fair in stating thJ.t 
non-framing of :s3ue would not stand in the way as the parties did go to �rial on 
this point and led svidence in support of their rival cases. Despite refe: ence j" 
made to Narendn vs. V1anikrao" AIR 1977 SC 217J, wherein allowing �;Iidcn �c 
to be led "on the critical question of corrupt practice" without issue on th:; ques­
tion and ewn in the absence of material facts and/or particulars was not appre­
ciated. In lhe ca<;:� at hand material facts do exist in Para I..) of the pctitionfr. 
Let it also be put on record that no objection was taken before me when de pc.i­
tioner deposed eloont this aspect. It Dlay be stated that the case had beci tr.t[':-.­
ferred to my file (lilly on 22-9-82. whereas issues had been framed on 21)-6-·81. 

tt is next urged ii;ai nO,Ie except PW- 1 has deposed about thi� aspect of /"is ca�e, 
and he being defi!litely an intere"ted p�rson, the fact or distribution may iiot he 
held established 011 his solitary evidenc. It is also cQntered that it is unbelievatk 
that a prominent party worker would appreach a rivai candidate in his cfLJrd �o 
persuade him to \ote for his adversary. As to Exhibit PO) dated 2J-4-79 \\hich 
IS strongly relied b:-, the learned Advocate General, Assam, in this regard" the 
submission is that the document has not �recifically referred about any act of BiakM 
liana .. Indeed learned I'.vocate General. General Megh8.1aya, contends that t:lis d)­
cument is a manufactured one and no reliance at all be olnccd all it. 
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12. As necessity of receiving assurance from unimpeachable document has been 
emphasised in the decisions noted above, it has to be seen whether Exhibit P(7) 
suffers from any infirmity. The first submission made in this regard that the elec­
tion petition did not contain a copy of this vital document, and in para 10 nothing 
much was said, about its contents. It is then urged that the point raised in 
Exhibit P (7), namely putting of wrong symbol of Congress (I), is not the 
ultimate grievance of the petitioner in as much as while deposing about the corrupt 
practice because of which he was defeated, he has not mentioned about the wrong 
symbol. As this document came from the custody of the petitioner and/ or his 
party and has no indication on it that it was Over seen by the Returning Officer, 
it is urgen that a document like Exhibit P (7) could have been prepared by the 
petitioner any time to suit his convenience. Some grievance is also mede about 
exhibiting this document in the present case by calling for the records of Election 
petition No.2 of 1979 for wihich a prayer was made only on 13-9-82 by stating 
that some documents filed that caSe are needed for adjudication of tile prescnt matter. 

13. I have not been persuaded by these submissions to hold that Exhibit P (7) is 
a creation of afterthought. Indeed, even such a suggestion \\as not given to PW-3, 
the author of the document. The learned Ad\ocate General, Assam is right in 
stating that if it would have been crcated afterwards, mention could have been made 
in it about Mawia's mother's appeal describing Congress as a party of Va is, which 
it dones not contain. Though it would have been better if a copy of 
this document were enclosed with the Election petition, the same would 
not have saved this document from the attack of after-creation in 
as much as despite the document being annexed with the petition filed 
on 12-6-79, such attack would have been made. Then. para 10 of the petition does state 
that a letter was wtittcn by PW-3 to the Returning Officer alleging distribution 
of dummy baUot papers. The sum and substance of Exhibit P (7) is also that the 
submission that as the petitioner while sUIY,marising the corrupt practices allegedly 
commiHed by the returned candidate, did not mention about wrong symbol, and 
no it should be held that he has no grievance on this score, would be an unfair 
finding because such a grievance looms large in the entire eVIdence of the petition­
er. This document had to come from the custody of the petitioner or hislarty 
because it is the evidence of PW-3 that the Returning Officer had returne the 
same. As the document bad not been kept by the officer, no docketing by his 
office Can be expected on it. On the face of the averments finding place in the 
written statement or the Returning Officer qua this document, which amounts to 
admission of showing:: such a letter to him, as is the case of the petitioner, it 
would be an absolutely unjustified finding to hold that it was created afterwards. 

14. I would, therefore, hold that Exhibit P ( 7) did exist at the relevant time. 
The submissio� relating to non-compliance with Order 13 Rule 1 C.P.c. while calling 
for the records of Election petition No.2 of 1979 has also not much merit when it is 
remembered that the document had been filed earlier in that case. The non-mentioning 
of the name of Biakliana in this document cannot nlso be overplayed because the Sec­
retary of the party was not so much interested as to wbo had distributed the dummy 
ballot papers, but �,'as more concerned with the fact of distribution of these papers 
containing wrong symbol of the party. The evidence of PW-l however, clearly 
shows that he had approached PW-J after Biakliana had passed on the offensive 
documents to him. 

.� 
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15 . . ,Another contempOfd110ilS document pressed into service J) the petitIOner 15 Annexure IV to the petltlOo. WhICh IS a copy of lettci writ-
ten by Liankaia, President of Khatla Unit of People's Conference Party on 23. 
4. 79 ackno,wledging distributio� of dummy ballot papers and requesting the As�is­
tant Returnmg Officer to trcat It as \vithdrawn because it was rumoured that his 
party had printed forged ballot papen as Dames of all the candidates aiongv.itb 
their symbols appeared in the docurnfot As to thk the fir::.t submission of the 
other side is that this was not duly proved in as much as the petitioner even admit­
ted that the signature of Liankaia as the appearing in the original of this leiter 
which he had seen in the Office of the Assistant Returning Officer was noi known 
to him. But here again receipt of thi� 1ctt'::r has been admitted in the reply filed 
by the Returning Officer. Indeed \vhat has been stated in the reply of respondent 
No. I in para 18 \vould amount to at! admission that such a letter had be·en writ­
ten by Liankaia, although this was so done according to the contesting resr'ondent, 
by Liankaia in his personal capacity', The provisions of the c.P,C. rel3.ting to 
pleacing finding place in Order VIII have to be borne in mind in this connection. 
An evasive denial will not do. The word "alegcd" in para 18 while a,jrnitting 
about this letter, cannot be taken to be a specific denial. The original of the let­
ter could not, however, be brought on record by the petitioner becaus� thor-gh 
the Assistant Returning Officer and the Superintendent of Police to whom 
the matter had been referred for inquiry were ':>ummoned to produce th" sar�lC, 
they had failed to appear in this case, 

16. Another point urged by the learced Advocate General, Meghala: a as to 
this document is that it not referable to this constituency at all. This sul'miss-on 
is founded on what f inds place in th,: Ultimate para of the letter. As already 
noted, this letter comc to be written because a rumour was spread that -he 
party of the writter bad printed "forged ballot papers' because th-� papers 
circulated by il contained names of all the (,:andidates and their symt,01. 
So far as the name", of all and �pomored candidate's symbol is concer� 
ned, it has been stated in the early p:lft of the letter that this was done ty Shri. 
Lalsangzuala also. As to the printing of symbols of others, it was statC('! in he 
Ultimate para that "if was put X m,-:rks against other candidates namely �ike Pu 
Sangzuala as reported that VI'ould hr:ve mean "don't" cast your vote I,ll' bim 
"and printing their symbols means" you have free choice " .�elying on :he, _.(> 
ference to Pu Sangzuala in this para, it is contended that thiS letter was \\inteen 
for the canstilL'enc\, in which he VI(lS a (,;andidate, and as he had contested from 
Aizawl East, it is s'ubmitted that tho: dummy ballot papers published by Liankaia 
did not relate to the constituency at hand, which is Aizawl North. But, accord ng 
to me, no such conclusion follows. A fair reading of the whole letter ( ignoLng 
the grammatical lapse) at many plact-s ) would ')how that the name. of Pu Sa-1g� 
zuala in this para has appeared not to indicate that he was a cancl1date for _he 
constituency, but that he had reportedly put X mnrks ,-:gainst other candidate, 
names in his papers. This apart, nothing has be�Jl brought on record 10 <;hJW 
that Liankaia had issued any other d-Jrnmy ballot papers except like EXl, P (5) 
which is deadv meant for the comtituency at hand. �or these reason:.- I reiect 
the contention of the learned counsel. 
17. It is then contended that Khatla \'v'a-s not a part of Aizawl North COllstitu:ll­
C)-', and as such it cannot be accepted that a unit of of that place even 01 Peop,e's 
Conference Party would have undertaken to publish such dummy bailor. papt'[s� 
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would It is also mentioned in this connection tbat nobody of the press \vas exa­
mined to find out as to who had really entrusted the job to it. These are un­
daubtedly sLlbmissions of some merit but then Khatla is part of, Ai�a\Vl W�st 
which is adjacent to the Constituency at hand. 'Nhell importance of Bng. T S�tlo 
for the party is recognised as would be evident from the

. 
statement or Bng. hl,m­

self he being the founder President of the party and havmg taken a very leadIng 
role in getting the candidate� of the party elleeted, :he effort of the !<-hatla ,Unit 
to campaign for respondent No. I should not stlrprise anybod!'. H�d ,Its PresIdent 
Liankaia really not undertaken this exervise in the name of hIS umt, It stands to 
reason to believe that respondent No. I would have examined him as his witness. 
It would have been no doubt b e  Her if somebody from the press would have been 
examined by the petitioner, but in yi,e\\, of all that has been stated about, I do 
not entertain any doubt about the existence of durnmy hallot papers like Exhibit 
P (5). It is also worth nothing that a copy or Annexure IV was endorsed to the 
Hnamte Press, who has been shown in Exhibit P (5) as its printer. Let it be noted 
thllt the lack of evidence showing compliance with section 127A of the Act has not 
been regarded as sufficient by me to completely und;) the weight of the aforesaid 
contemporaneous document. What has been observed in Ar.lOlak Chand (supra) 
cannot be applied in the case at hand particularly because of the letter of Liankaia 

18. In view of all these, [ would accept that the petitioner has succeeded in 
establishing that Biaklbna handed over a d()cument like Exhibit P (5) to the 
fanner on 21st April) 1979. There is another allegation relating to Village Chaltlang 
and the same is distribution of dummy ballot papers on 23rd April/?9 at about 
4 -30 p.m. among the voters. The petitioner has produced only pw- 2 Lalmawia 
in support of this allegation. The learned Advocate General, Meghalaya, has con­
tended that Lalmawia is a got up witnesses in as much as his name did not find 
place in the election petition or in the list of witnesses submitted by the petitioner. 
A reference to para 12 of the petition which contains this allegation :>hows that 
three persons were <;pecifically named in this '::onnection. They are N�urbela, 
Lalrinliana and Chhuan�l; and these persons v.'er,� sho\l.:n as witnesses by the peti­
tioner. Of these three, Ngurbcla and Chhuana refused to come forward, according 
to the petitioner, hecause they having joined Government service after the filing of 
the election petition were stated to be not willing to depose againts their Chief 
Minister. As to Lalrinliana the case of the petitioner is that he had come to this 
Court on several occasions in connection with the caSe, hut could not be examined 
for one reason or other and he expressed his unwillingness to come any further. 
It is for this reason that Lalmawia wa:-, allowed Jy this Court vide order Pdssed 
on 3-1 !--82 to be examined a'} a witness on the allegation in question. 

19. ·But allowing PW. 2 to be ex:ctmined IS one matter, and how much 
credence should be. placed on his evidence is another aspect. His late appearance 
on the scene is in Itself a factor which has to put the Court on special guard. 
This apart, there is absolutely no supporting document so far as this distribution 
is concerned. It has to be remembered that Exhibit P (7) had been written after 
P,?,. 1 ha� becn approached at about 10.30 a.m. as stated by PW. L whereas 
tim, ..::xercise was allegedly und�r taken at ab-;)llt 4.30 p.m. So, on the solitary 
evidence of a late carher like PW 2) this allegation c:tUnot be accepted to have 
been proved by the petitioner. 

• 
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20. This takes us to the crucial meeting held on 21st April/79 at Sihphir. 
There are two alkgations relating to it : (\) distribution of dummy ballot papers 
of the above type; and (2) criticism by the returned candidate of Congress (I) as a 
part� of non-MilOS. This has .been stoutly denied by respondent No. I. The 
petItIoner has produced PWs. 4 and 5 in support of his case and Iespondent 
No. 1 has examined RWs. 2 to 4, apart from denying the same on oath. 

21. According to PWs. 4 and 5 the meeting had taken place in the Primary 
School of the Village and started at about 8 p.m. It was chaired by Shri Rohlira, 
who was the President of the Sihphir Unit of the party. At first Rohlira addres­
sed the meeting for about half an hours. and thereafter respondent No. I delivered 
his speech for about two hours. According to them dummy ballot papers 
were dlstnbuted m the meetIng. These papers, as per these witnesses, had earlier 
been stacked on the table by the side of which the President of the 
meeting and respondent No. I had taken their seats. In his speech respondent No.1 
talked about developmental programme of the State and he also criticised Congr<;ss 
(I) party by saying that it is a party of "vais" i.e. it is  a "vai pawl". 

21. The holding of meeting at Sihphir on 21st April/79 at about 8 p.m. in 
the Primary School is  an admitted fact. Respondent No. I has also depmed tbat 
he had addressed that meeting, That it was presided over by Rohlira who Ii"st 
addressed the audiance is also not disputed. The two points denied relate to 
distribution of dummy ballot papers and criticisim of Congress (I) party. To believe 
the RWs, respondent No.1 had not told anything relating to the Congress Part) . 
Further, absolute discipline had been maintained in the meeting as there wa s no 
movement at all during about two hours when Brig. Sailo had delivered his speech. 
According to RW. I this had happened because people knew his style of addressing 
public meeting, wich is to give specific time to start the address, and not to allow 
making of noise or movement during the address. It is claimed that people have 
shown respect for this desire and generaJiy silence prevails during his address. 
This version has received support from PWs. 2 to 4, of whom it seems RW. 4 was 
examined mainly to satisfy the Court that PW. 5 RothaDga was not present in the 
meeting. 

23. Before other aspects are examined, it may be seen whether from the evidence 
of RW. 4 it could be held that PW. 5 was not present in the meeting. It is an admitt"d 
position that the meeting had been organised inside the school hall and that it W1S 
almost packed to the full. About 200 peop'e were ac,ommodated in the small hall which 
was i1Iuminated with the help of two petrornax lights. In such a situation it would 
not have been possible for RW. 4, who had come along with Brig. Saito to the 
meeting from Ramhlun, to have recogrdsed all those who were sitting in the hall 
when he entered it. Indeed this witness had admitted this position in his cross· 
examination. The further evidence that he had not particularly searched for his 
relative PW-5 would show that not much weight can be given to what has been 
deposed by RW-4 about the absence of PW. 5 from the meeting. 

24. Learned Advocate General, Meghalaya, contends that PWs. 4 and 5 being 
partisan witnesses in as much as they are attached to the Congress (1) party and 
had worked for that party in the election, too much of credence should not be 
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placed on their evidence. It is also submitted th,t their statements that they had 
seen the aIleged dummy ballot papers stacked oa the table is an act of embellist­
ment on their part which would make them further unreliable because they must 
have deposed a bout the same only to boost up the case of the petitioner that the 
distribution was with the consent of the returned candidate. 

25. There is undoubtedly some force in these submissions. But then it would be 
difficult to get a really independent person to depose about what had happened 
in an election meeting held indoors. The veracity of such witnesses has to be 
judged from inherent infirmities, if any in their t!vidcnce or from contradictions 
between their statements. Further, that version has to be accepted between the 
two put up by the two sides which is more Tea�onable and which accords with 
normal human conduct. To put it differently thl;- surer circumstances and broad 
probabilities have also to be borne in mind. Though RWs. 2 and 3 appear 
to be neutral witnesses, it is stated by learned Advocate General, Assam, that they 
are indeed not so in as much as RW. 2 got the job of Carpenter in a Government 
Aided High School in 1980; and RW. 3 being a Hindi Teacher must have been 
appointed by the Government. 

26. Let it be first seen whether distribution of dummy ballot papers had taken 
place in the aforesaid meeting,. Having accepted that documents like Exhibit P 
l5) had found their circulation, it is reasonable ',0 accept that these must have 
been made available to the persons who had cane to attent the meeting address­
sed by the hero of the party and by one in whose name and for whose benefit 
the dummy ballot papers had been prepared. It is on record that Brig. Sailo had 
addressed only a few meetings in his own constituency and that too had been 
done when he was acquainted with the grievance of the people of his consti­
tuency about the nonvisit of their candidate. Erthusiastic workers could not have 
missed the opportunity of  apprising the voters what had Shri. Sailo to say 
through document like Exhibit P (5) when he himself was present in the 
meetting. The normal human conduct, the aforesaid circumstances 
and the broad probabilities would therefore support the case of the 
p=titioner about the distribution of the dummy ballot papers in the aforesaid mee­
ting. It may, however. be that the same were not distributed when Shri. Sailo was 
addressing the meeting, but when the Chairman of the meeting was on his legs. 
Indeed PW. 5 had said so. As such the distribution might have taken place even 
while respecting the desire of respondent No 1 t21at there should be no movement 
or noise when he was sharing bis thoughts with the people. 

27. As to the evidence ofPWs. 4and5, i t.s further submitted by the learned 
Advocate General, Meghalaya that they (father and son) are not believable in as much 
though in their presence an objectionable act wa� committed, the matter was not 
discussed with the party officials at all which will 'how that nothing of the kind 
had happened. Fault is found with PW. 4 for not having contacted any office bea­
ref of ChaltIang on 22nd or 23rd April. not havir:g found the petitioner at his house 
on those two dates. These are not SO weighty criticims as to regard PWs. 4 and 5 
as cooked up witneses. Had no effort been made even to inform the petitioner in 
time about what had taken place in the meeting, delay or want of contact with 
proper person could have been urged as valid ground to discard their testimony. 
But when the person most vitally concerned was sought to be apprised without 
delay, lack of discussion with other less concerned �annot cause dent to their evidence. 

'. 
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28. So far '" RWs. 2 to 4 are concerned, 1 cannot pin full faith in what has been 
stated by these witnesses mainly because of two reasons 1/4 (1) They were evidently 
o'ol telling full truth (as would appear from what is being said later) when they 
deponed about non-mentioning of the Congress (I) party at all by Shri SaiJo in 
his speech. (2) The parrot like contention of RWs. 2 to 4 that they had se"n docu­
ment like Exhi"oit P (5) for the f irst time in Court is hard to swallow when wit­
ness like RW. 3 knew that this case was inter alia about the distribution of dum­
my ballot papers. The evidence of RW. 4 that nobody had told him that the e ec­
tion petition was bOllt distribution of dummy ballot papers connot be accepted 
when he had been told about the o",;e. RW. 2 also did not give good account of 
hihmself by stating that he had no ide,l as to what ",as this case about. These wit­
nesses must have known that they h:ld been summoned on behalf of the respon­
dent No. 1 to counter the allegations relating to what had happened at Sihphir 
meetting. The distribution of dummy ballot papers is one of the two alkgations 
qua that meeting. As such the witne�'.ses could have been fair to the C)urt in 
frankly stating this fact. They, howevl�r, chose to remain as far away as possible 
from docunwnt like Exhibit P (5). This have done at the cost of making their 
evidence unnatural. 

29. As to the evidence of respondent No. I himself 1 have to say tLis: His 
claim that there waS no movement or noise during his address may sound rather 
curious being almost a part of military disipline, as stated by the learned Advo� 
cate General, Assam, but people may undergo the same for a dear leader 0:' tbelfs. 
The discipline of a meeting depends on the person addressing it, people. 
who are addressed and the place and occassion of the meeting. Ihe 
fact that Poepie's Conference Party had won 23 seats cut of 
30 in the General Election of 1978 which was the first to be contested 
by it, and had captured 19 seats in 1979 would show the popularity of this party 
with the people. To hear the founder of such a party, the people, and in 
partcular, the followers of the party. may undergo Some amount of right disc'p­
line in deference to the wishes of their leader. But thell the evidence of Shri 
Sailo is  also not free from infirmity. His statement that he is not in a position 
to tell in what \\'8.y the Congress symbol is shown in the electinn materials issued 
by the Congress (I) party and that he did not know if Congress (I) symcol 
is raised hand facing palm, are difficldt to accept. After the Congress (I) patty 
has established ibelf for long in power at the Centre and a large number of 
States, any man having to do with grass root politics in today India would 
definitely know the symbol of that paJty. To hear from the Chief Minister of a 
State that he does not know what the Congress (I) symbol really is, excert that 
it is "Hand" j:, indeed surprising. Similarly to hear from Brig.Sailo that 
he had not mentioned even once about Congress (I) in his entire spee,;h 
raining over about two hours is another part of his long evidence which is 
hard to concede, as Congress (1) Party was the real challenger and re5}::ondent 
No. I having gone to address an election meeting, it would be quite rea�.onable 
to hold, as contended by the learned Advocate General, AS5am, that RW. I 
must have told to his audience something as to why they should vote for 
his Party and not for the opposite party. This conclusion almos'\, seems 
irresistible when it is borne in mind that the Peolpe's Con:erence 
Party was bam according to its father, because other political 
parties, including Congress (I) had failed to make any headway in the 
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matter of planned development as well as insurgency problem. An election is an 
excercise of selecting one who is best among the contestants. To 
decide this, qualities of one who seeks vote is no doubt important. But 
it is no less important as to who are the other candidates or to which party they 
belong. Elections are thus fought and won not only on positive votes, but also 
on negative votes, as they are called. Recent Indian experience will bear this. 
There being no yardstick of jud,ing who is abso·:!utety good, it is the comparative 
merit which matters in all walks of life. Nobody is perfect, or can be perfect. 
It is the comparative perfection which weighs the scale ultimately. Addressing an 
election meeting without mentioning even once about the rival party is some­
thing which cannot be accepted. This is not really "unproductive work" as stated 
by Shri Saito. Of course, to win voters on this count criticism has to be sound 
and meaningful . 

30. In view of all the above, I hold that in the meeting of Sihphir, dummy bal­
lot papers like Exhibit P (5) were distributed. But in so far as describing of the 
Congress (I) as a party of non-Mizos by respondmt No. I is  concerned, though I 
am of the firm view that the returned candidate must have said something about 
that party. I have no clinching materials before me to hold that he must have 
characterised it as a non MilO party. At best it could be said that he might 
have done so because it is too common a thing in Mizoram to say so as deposed by 

PW _ 3, which statement has been relied on by the respondent himself for some 
other purpose. But. as already noted, such a matter cannot be held established 
by preponderance of probabilties. So, I reject this part of the allegation. 

30A. It has now to be seen whether on the basis of facts found to have been 
established by the petitioner respondent No. I CLn be said to have committed cor­
rupt practices mentioned in sub-sections (3), (3A) and (4) of the Act. According 
to the learned Advocate-General, Assam, description of Congress (1) as non-Mizo 
party (vai- pawl) in Ext- P (5) would amount to corrupt practice within the mea­
ning of sub-sections (3) and (3A). The counter submission is that this would not 
be so even on the facts alleged. As per the learned Advocate General, Meghalaya 
sub-section (3) interdicts appeal on the ground of religion, race etc. of the person 
concerned. It is nobody's case that Ext. P (5) had asked the people to refrain from 
voting for the election petitioner on the ground of his religion, race etc. Indeed, 
the petitioner is as much Mizo as is  respondent No. 1. Further, in so far as Mawi's 
mother's appeal is  concerned, the thrust of the sz.me against the Congress (1) party 
is not because of it being "vai pawl". This wOLld be apparent from what has 
been stated in the appeal as regards Congress. The English translation of the 
relevant portion would reap as below : 

"Congress party is the first" vai" to have made a name \\ith perpetual party 
squabbles. The peopk have rejected their 5 years Government and they were 
badly defeated. Some of them have even joined Janata, Cow Congress, Bird 
Congress and now Hand Congress, I do not hold any regard for them. Moreover, 
i t  is the hiding place of veteran Mizo Union (leaders). " 

This would clearly show that though the appeal started by describing the 
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Congress as "vai-pa wI", it ended by even stating that it is a party of veteran Mi- >--
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zo Union leaders. who are definitely Mizos. So, the appeal not to vote for 
Congress (I) cannot be really said to be on the ground that it is non-Mizo party. 
It is rather aimed against defection and party squahbles. 

31. Finally, it is urged by learned Advocate General, Meghalaya, that description 
of Congress (I) P8fty as non-Mizo pany is not taken seriously by the people of 
the area in question. This is sought to be brought home by first referring to 
Exhibit P (7) in which no grievance at all was made on this score by P.W. 3 ul­
sangzuala. When asked about this the witness stated :-

"In the cOi!:-;1aint I had not mentioned about Mawai's mother's appeal on 
the reverse �;(l� because such things have been too common in Mizoram. This 
was known to me before I had lodged the complaint to the Returning 
Officer. Such appeals were even made by Congress (I) also". 

32. On the basis of all the above, it is contended and rightly, by the learned Ad­
vocate General, ;\f, oghaJaya, that describing Congress (I) as a non-Mizo party 
would not attract the operation of sub-section (3). As to sub-section (3A), it is 
urged that there is not even a whisper about any attempt on the part of the re­
turned candidate to promote or attemp� to promote feeling of enmity or hatred 
between different classes of citizens by describing Congress (I) as a non-MiZl) 
Party. Though it may be, as stated in Ebrahim Sulaiman v. M. C. Mohammed 
AIR 1980 SC 354 that speech against a political party comes within the ambit of 
sub-section (3A) but as such things have been too common in Mizoram as stated 
by PW 3, and as the appeal has not ""en regarded by me to be directed on tho 
non-Mizo component of Congress (I), the question of promoting or attempting to 
promote hatred between Mizos and non--Mizos does not arise . 

33. It remains to be Seen whether the distribution of the dummy ballot pap." 

t, 
attracted the mischief of section 123 (4) of the Act. To constitute corrupt practic" 

• under sub-section (4), following five conditions are required to fulfilled :-

(1) there would be publication of statement of facts relating to th,' 
personal character or conduct of any candidate or in relation 
to his candidatures; 

(2) the statement must be false. 

(3) the person making it should either believe it to be false or 
should not believe it to be tfue; 

(4) the s,atement should be one which is reasonably calculated to 
prejudice the prospects of that candidate's election, and. 

(5) the publication must have been by the candidate or his agen',' 
or by any other person with the consent of the candidate or 
his election agent. 

34. The submission for respondent No. 1 is that Done of th" 
....... aforesaid ingredie :1ts is really satisfied in the pl'e4ient case. As to the first (ondi-· 

tiOD) it is stated that the publication can have a nexus only with the candidature: 
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of the petitioner, but this too is doubtful. The learned Advocate General, Assam, 
refers to Elvin Sangma, AIR 1975 SC 425 to dispel this doubt In that case the 
symbol of the electIon petitioner was shown in the dummy ballot papers as "Boat" 
instead of "Two leaves" which had been aIloted to him. A point was urged be­
fore this Court that tbis wrong showing would 1:;ot be relatable -to the candidature 
of the election petition. It may be stated that in the dummy ballot papers the 
name of the election petitioner had also been ,,"ongly spelled. This Gourt held 
that the statements as appearing in the dummy barot papers did show that the 
petitioner was nowhere and the petitioner had ccased to subsist; and so the�e rela­
ted to his candidature. On appeal being preferred by the returned candidate, this 
decision was affirned. No submission had been advanced before the Supreme Court 
that the aforesaid statements would not be in relation to candidature. In cerning 
to this conclusion, the wrong spelling was not given any importance because the 
electorate had consisted of 80% of illiterate penons. . 

35. Learned Advocate General, Meghalaya, urges that what has been held in 
Elvin Sangma bas to be confined to the facts oj that case in as much as an ab­
solutely wrong symbol was shown in the dummy ballot papers which would have 
definitely confused the illiterate voters. ]n the present case, the majority of the 
electors (about 60% are literate and the symbol shown in the dummy ballot papers 
cannot be said to be of such a kind as to cause ccnfusion in their mind, submits 
t�e lea�ned Counsel. . Whether the statements pTejudiced the pr�spect of. the can­
dIdate IS a matter whIch shan be seen seperately, bu', on the rauo of ElvlD Sangma 
it has to be held that sbowing of wrong symbol would bave a nexus witb the can­
didature of a person. 

36. As to the second of the above five conditions, the contention is that the way 
Congress (1) symbol as shown in Exhibit P (5) cannot be regarded to be a false 
statement. It is urged that tbe symbol allotted '0 this party was a "HAND" and 
what finds place in Exhibit P (5) is also a hand. The fact that it bas been horizon­
tally placed instead of showing it vertically ( in a raised position ) would not alter 
the fact that tbe symbol shown in Exbibt P (5) is tbat of a hand. According to the 
learned counsel it would be wrong to say, as is 1he case of the petitioner, that the 
symbol in Exhibit P (5) is of a left hand glove as that is belied by the fact of 
trident mark in the symbol, because a glove does not have such a mark. 

36. As in the present case, the replica of the symbols supplied by the concer­
ned Election Officer to the parties is not on record, it cannot be held that 
what has ·appeared in Exhibit P (5) is not the symbol at a hand. Tbe decision of 
tbis Court in Election Petition 2/79, wbich is relied on by tbe learned Advo­
cate General, Assam. cannot assist him, as in that case there were some more 
materials before the Court to come to its findir,g in this regard. So far as the 
third condition is concerned, as the person who hac�. publisbed the dummy ballot 
papers ( Liankaia ) is not before the Court, it cannot be said that he had shown 
the symbol as finds place in Exhibit P (5) believing it to be false, or· not believing 
it to be true. It is worth pointing out that it is not material for this purpose 
whether respondent. No. 1 believed the statement to be false or not true because 
admittdely he is not the person who had publ shed the document. As to the 
fourtb condition, there is nothing before this Court to hold that the symbol as 
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print
,
ed in thlj offensive papers prejudiced the prospect of the pet.itiom:r's 

electIOn or Was culculated to do so. Apart from the general statement 
made by the petitio�er that the symbol had confused or misguided the 
vo'��rs, there is absolutely nothing to satisfy this Court about this aspect. Facts of 
ElvIn Sangma's case are entirely different in this regard. 

38. The last condition of this sub-section raises a question of some importance. 
The point is whether COI!sent of the candidate or his election agent would be 
necessary even If the Publication be bv an agent of the candidate. To answer 
this, we may have a !jlimse at the history of this sulrsection. When the Act 
found place in the statute book, this provision was covered by sub-section 
(5) and it had then stated that the publication has to be "by a candidate or his 
agent, or by any- other person with the connivance of the candidate or his agent." 
In 1956 the Act underwent a great many amendments, and twice. The seco,D.d 
amendment of lhat year being by Act No. XXVII of 1956 substituted ertirel), a 
new Chapter in Part-VII of the Act. In the recast section 123, sub-section <4) 
dealt with this corrupt practice and it stated that the publication has to be "by a 
candidate or h;s agent or by any other person". An Explanation was, ilowewr. 
inserted stating �" �:lt the expression 'agent' in the' sedion included an election agent. 
a polling agent al1d a:1/ person "who is held to have acted as an agent in Gonncc� 
tion with the el�ction with the consent of the candidate" The only other ameIld­
ment material for our purpuse is that of 1958 by Act 58 of that year which inser­
ted the words "with the consent of a candidate or his election agent" afLer the 
words "'any other person". 

39. The question which has to be decided in the ligth of the above history i. 
wacther cons�nt of the candidate or his election agent. is necessary if the publi­
cation be by an agent. I am of the view that this is not required. Of course, 
any and everybody would not be an agent even within the expended meaning given 

_. 
in the Explanation (I). A reference to that Explanation would show tbat apart 
from an election agent or a polling agent, a person can be treated and held to be 
an agent ody if he had so acted with the consent of the candidate. Thus ,;onsent 
of the candidate would have to be ascertained, but only to find out wbether a 
person, other than the election agent or polling agent, would come within the am­
bit of the expression 'agen t'. Once, however, a person is so held, further .;onsent 
of the candidate or his election agent for the publication would not be necessary. 
The material cha!1ge which has been brought about in this provision as it has found 
place when the Act was first enacted, is that in the case of publication by any 
other person mere connivance of the candidate would not do, it has to be with 
his consent. 

40. To eX'Lmine whether the last condition of section 123 (4) waS satisfied or not, 
it has to be fic�t seen whether Biakliana could be put in the category as an agent. 
I am speaking of Biakliana alone, as the names of the persons who had d_ stribLl­
ted the dummy ballot papers in the Sihphir meeting are not known. It may al:m 
be mentioned thlt the word "Publication" in the sub-section really means "distribu­
tion" as stated in Prabhu Naryan, AIR 1975 SC 968. As Biakliana WaS admittedly 
not the election agent, or a polling agent, he can be regarded as an agent only if 
the last requirc:n-?nt of Explanation (1) is satisfied. In this connection, referen:e 

.." has been made to Nani Gopal Swami V. Abdul Hamid, 19 ELR 175, by the :earned 
Counsel for the p,titioner. Though the ratio or that decision does not hold the field 
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in so far as what has been stated there-in about the consent of a candidate in the 
activities undertaken by an agent in view of subsequent pronouncements of the 
Supreme Court, more particularly Balokrishna v. Fernandes, AIR 1968 SC 1201. 
What was observed by Sarjoo Prasad, C.J. as to v,rhen a person can be regarded to 
be an agent, has not been disturbed or differed. As pointed ' out by the learned 
Chief Justice, an 'agent' within the meaning of sedion 123 would include III person 
who in fact does work for a candidate and whose services have been accepted by 
the candidate. So also,· an association of persons or a society or a political party 
and its prominent members who set up the candi.jate, sponsor his cause and work 
to promote his election, may be aptly called 'agent' of the candidate for election 
purpose. 
41. Thus, Biakliana could be regarded as an agent of respondent No, I as ad­
mittedly he is a prominent worker of returned candidate's party and had worked for 
the party's nominee. He is also in visiting terms with respondent No. 1 who had 
solicited much information from Biakliana about the allegations made in this case. 
But as some of the other conditions of section 123 (4) are not satisfied, it cannot 
be held that any corrupt practice within its meaning was committed by the people's 
nominee. 
42. In view of the finding regarding non-fulfilment of necessary conditions of 
sub-sections (3), (3A) and (4) of sections 1 23, it is strictly speaking not necessary 
to examine whether respondent No, I had consented to the issue of this offen­
ding No, I had consented to the issue of this oTending document, but as I am 
addressed at length on this aspect, it would be cnly proper to record my view 
about the name. It may be stated that question of consent is being examined, appa� 
rently it is not a case attracting clause (d) (ii) of section 1 00 (I) of the Act. 

43. As to when consent can be inferred has been a subject matter of a number 
of decisions. It is necessary, indeed not possible. to refer to all those judgements. 
It would be enough if some representative opinior.s are alJuded to, Rajagopala 
Rao v, N.O. Ranga, AIR 1971 SC 267 may be first referred, This aspect bas 
been dealt in para 16 where it is stated :-

"Proof of express consent is not necessary; inference of such conseDt may be 
raised from the circumstances. Prior knowlecge of the contents and the 
knowledge that it is  likely to be published may raise an inference of consent, 
if the candidate deliberately keeps quiet and does not stop the publication 
if i t  be within his power, Where the offending matter has already been pub­
lished and thereafter it comes to the knowledge of the candidate at the elec­
tion and he does not take steps to repudiate it. the consent may not neces­
sarily be inferred unless the candidate or his elec"don agent permits of aids in 
publication " . 

In the aforesaid case the consent of the candidate was not read from the 
mere fact that the publication was by a Swahantra party worker and the candi­
date had been set up by that party even though the distributor was an important 
member of the party. Relying on this i t  is submitted by the learned Advocate 
General, Meghalaya, that although Biakliana is " promi.nent party worker con­
sent of the candidate cannot be read in what was done by him merely because 
of party affiliation. 
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44. Mention has to be. made on this aspect of S.N. Halakrishna V. Fernandez, 
AIR. 1969 SC 1210, as it is an cimportant decision .in this point. It has been ac·;ep­
ted in Para 45 of this judgement that consent need not he direc!l; proved 
and the COI1Slstent course of conduct may raise a presumption of consc:nt. For 
such a inference to be raised there must, however. be some reasonable evidence f 'om 
which an inerence can be made of, the meeting of the minds or at least a ladt 
approval of the general conduct of the agent. It has also been stated in para 50 
that in view of !he substitution of tbe word 'consent' for "knowledge and connI­
vance", the law requires some concrete proof, direct or circumstantial, of con:,ent 
and not merely of knowledge and connivance. 

Lastly, reference may be made to Mohammad Koya VS, Muthu Koya, AIR 1 979 
SC 154. In that case the election of Mohammad Koya was set aside by the Ke­
rala High Court but on appeal that judgement was set aside by the SupNme 
Court. The gravemen of the allegation in that case was that Shri Ko�a had com­
mitted corrupt practice falling. within sub-section (31.) of section 123 which was 
because of writings of ' several articles, extract of speeches and .cartoons i n  a daily 
paper called Chandrika of which Shree Koya was the ·Chief Editor. As liability 
was sought to be fastened on Shri Koya by' alleging that he must be de,med to 
have given his consent to what was appearing in Chandpjka, the Supreme Court 
examined as to when consent could be in such a case. In this connection reference 
was made to Harasingh, AIR 1974 SC 47 where it had b<;en stated that consent 
or agency cannot be inferred from remote causes or ftom mere close friendship or 
other relationship of political, affiliation. As it was found that Shri Koya was not 
the Editor but Chief Editor and was really a name !epder and the post which he 
hekl was purely ornamental, consent of the returned candidate ,"",as not read in the 
articles, cartoons etc. The learned Advocate General, Meghalaya, has pl� ced 
reliance on this decision· to show that even where a person had financial 
interest i n  the newspaper which was published by a party sponsoring tht: candi­
date, consent had not been read in all that it appeared in the newspaper. So ("on­
sent of a candidate in the c<J,se ; at hand 'cannot be inferred, submits the learned 
Counsel, from the mere fact that some important party-men had done something 
to advance the cause of the candidate.· 
46. On this aspect no more citat�on is felt' neceSsary. I would only refe: to the 
conclusions, I had arrived in Election Petition No. 2/80 (Bakin Pertin \'. Sot eng 
Tayeng) as I think that those hold the field even now. This is what was st"ted 
in para 25 of the judgement on the question of consent '-

(I) It cannot be equated with knowledge; 

(2) it i s  different from connivance; 
(3'; it need not be express and ·can be inferred from facts and cir­

cumstances of a case; 
(4) the fact that an action has been taken by an AGENT as under­

stood in the Election law is not enough to imply consent of the 
candidate; . I 

(5) this cannot also be inferred from mere close relationship or 01 her 
relationship or political affiIiatiCm ; 
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(6) if the a.ent be a regular worker in whose hands election cam­
paign has been left, or if he be the sole agent, implied consent 
of the cand idate rna y be read; 

(7) if something be done in the presence of a candidate, or is said 
to his hearing, implied consent may be taken to thIS, I shall now 
add that the candidate must have knowledge as well of the 
thing done. 

(8). if numerous acts of one nature are done to the knowledge of the 
candidate, it may be accepted that the same was done with his 
consent. 

47. The learned Advocate General, Assam has relied on the following circmnstaoces 
to show the consent of the returned candidate to the distribution of the damaging 
document. : (I) Publication by a party man and the distribution by a prominent 
parI) worker like Biakliana; (2) distribution at Sihphir in presence of Brig. T. Sailo; 
(3) the "dubiow; nature of written statement"; (4) non-examination of Liankaia and 
(5) failure to produce other documents said 10 have been distributed by workers 
of the People's Conference Party. 

48. The first circumstances could at best make the publisher and the distributor, 
an agent of the returned candidate, and nothing more. The case of Fernande·z 
would amply bear. this conclusion. In that case the consent of Shri Fernandez 
was not read despite these factors: (l )  benefit reaped by Fernandez from the writings 
of Shri Atre; (2) sharing of a COmmon planlofin by Shri. Fernandez with Shri. 
Atr.; (3) social contacts between the two; and (4) the cause of Shri. Fernandez 
being supported 'by Sampurna Maharastra Samiry, whose Chainnan Shri. Atre was. 
Learned Advocate General, Assa.m, presses into !'ervice Ram Kishan v, Jai Singh, 
37 ELR 217. That case however was much different on fads as the person 
Who had distributed the offending posters was made all in all of the election cam­
paign the candidate had himself seen the posters. and what is more had shown the 
expenses incurred in printing the same in his return of election expenses. 

49. So far as the second circumstance is concerned, the fact of distribution in 
presence of the candidate cannot be held to be sufficient in this regard. Learned 
counsel. however, relies on the case of Janak Sinha v. Mahant Ram, AIR 1972 SC 
359. A reference to paragraph 41 of that judgement shows that consent was read 
not only from the fact of distribution of the pamphlets in presence of the candi­
date but also because on oral appeal was made by the candidate himself on the 
basis of caste. It is because of this that the distributjon of the pamphlets contai­
ning an appeal in the name of caste, was accepted to have been with the consent 
of the candidate. It would be opposite to remind ourselves as to what was stated 
in Rajagopal Rao (supra) in this connection. According to that decision prior 
knowledge of the contents couples with keeping q uiet at the time of distribution may 
amount to consent. The present case h"'ls nothing to show that Shri T. Sallo had 

• 

• 
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any prior knowledge of the contents of the ' offensive document. The fact of s.an· 
ding of the documents is Illentionon bY'tht\ learned ' Advocate. General, Assam in 
this context. I would first tegard this part of PWs 4 and 5's evidence as embelishment. 
SecondlY, even if this '¥as so,�it would 110t show �prior knOwledge of the conknts 
on ' the part of Shri Sailo, ' ·  :realIy, it would to ' 'Srime extent negative 
prior knowledge, as a speaker going to meeting cannot know what is ""ritten in the 
documents stacked before him, If it were 'that the painphlets were brought by 
Shri Sailo along with him. it could have been argued that he must have known 
as to what ,was contained therein. i' ' . , I  

50. The charge of " dubiousness " o f  (he written statement., has no merit. This 
was, however, levelled because in the written statement it was stated inter alia by the 
contesting respondent , that even if .there was any distribution of dummy ballot pap'�rs, 
the same was made without the knowledge consent or connivance of the Jilswering 
respondent. It waS further stated that at any rate such distribution did net cause 
any prejudice to the election petitioner. These statements having made " fter the 
clear averment that there had been no distribution of dummy ballot papers, cannot be 
characterised as dubious. What was held in this regard in VimaJa Devi ';, K.M. 
Redd,', AIR 1975 SC 1 1 35, has no application, The observation regarding dubios­
ness Vias made therein because what was stated could enable putting forward of two 
alternative pleas (i) preparation of the documents before the election and (ii) of their 
prepared after the election but before filling of the election petition It was therefore 
stated that the pleading cannot be drafted in such a way as to shape the evidence or 
arguments to suit either theory. But ""hat has been avetred in the presen t written 
statement is far from dubiousness. The stand taken therein is one which had to 
be taken, as mere distribution without consent and prejudice to the pro5pects c;:m" 
not satisfy the requirements of section 123 (4), 

5 1 .  The contention relating to noo·examination of Liankaia has, however, some 
merit but much cannot be made out of it because even from his letter which is at 
Annexure-IV of the perition, it cannot be even distantly inferred that the affending 
statements made in the dummy ballot papers \\ere with the consent of the candi­
date. This apart, if something positive in this regard was suught to be taken out 
from Liankaia, the petitioner could have as well produced him, it has tv be remem-
bered that the burden of proving a co,rupt practice after aU lies on the decti<:>n 

1 petitiol).er, though a returned ,candipate cannot also keep mum. 

52. Failure to produce befofe the Court the documents which party workers oj 
respondent No. r had distributed has nothing to do with the consent relating to 
riistrihution of dummy ballot papers like Ext. P (5). That is mOre relevan� aboLlt 
the existence and pUblication of this document. As I have accepted publiCtltioll of 
?ummy ballot papers, the non-production of the election manifesto or other 'lPp�\ls 
Issued by the People's Conference Party cannot be regarded as a circumstnnce to 
show the consent vf the respondent No. I to what has gone in Ext. P �5) . 
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5�. , Tljis being tbe posi\ion. it cannot be. held that the returned candidate had, given hi<; 
��nt 10 tbe dis,lrihwiGIt <>f dummy ballot papers like E)<I. P(,S). which in any 
case, (jo" no! satisfy all ' the, requirementa o£ Section 123(4). ,As l lJave held , that 
the olectiom petitioner has failed to prove beY<lnd r�asonable.,donbt if reS� 
N<>. I bad characterised Con",.,s (I) as a jlon-Mizo Pally, . which in, any view.of 
the matter would not at(nu;t the mischief of sllb-section (3) and (3A) of section 
123, for' rpasons given, earlier no case for S<)ttillg aside the election has been made out. 

. .  
54. The result is that the petition stands dismissed with costs wl>ioh I assess at 
Rs. 1000!-

' . .  

Sd/ - B.L. Hansaria 
Judge. 

- '. ;I , 
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